
         

 

 

FONTAINBLEAU LAKES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 21, 2025 
6:30 P.M. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 

www.fontainbleaulakescdd.org 
786.303.3661 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Las Ramblas  
Clubhouse Conference Room 

9960 NW 10th Terrace 
Miami, Florida 33172 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
April 21, 2025 

6:30 p.m. 
 
   

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. March 17, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………….........Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding Perimeter Fence (Las Ramblas)……………………………………………...Page 7 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Maintenance of CDD Surveillance Cameras…………………………….Page 8 

I. Administrative & Operational Matter 

1. Discussion Reminder: Form 1 - Statement of Financial Interest – Due: July 1, 2025 

J. Board Members & Staff Closing Comments 

K. Adjourn 



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
Account # Order Number Identification Order PO Amount Cols Depth

142128 599317 Print Legal Ad-IPL01977840 - IPL0197784 $825.40 2 55 L

LArcher@sdsinc.org

Laura J. ArcherAttention:

Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410

PUBLISHED DAILY
MIAMI-DADE-FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared:
Mary Castro, who on oath says that he/she is CUSTODIAN
OF RECORDS of The Miami Herald, a daily newspaper
published at Miami in Miami-Dade County, Florida; that
the attached copy of the advertisement that was
published was published in said newspaper in the issue
(s) of:
Publication: Miami Herald

1 insertion(s) published on:

10/10/24

Affiant further says that the said Miami Herald is a
newspaper published at Miami, in the said Miami-Dade
County, Florida and that the said newspaper has
heretofore been continuously published in said Dade
County, Florida each day and has been entered a second
class mail matter at the post office in Miami, in said
Miami-Dade County, Florida, for a period of two years
next preceding the first publication of the attached copy
of advertisement; and affiant further says that he/she
has neither paid or promised any person, firm or
corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund
for the purpose of securing this advertisement for
publication in the said newspaper(s).The McClatchy
Company complies with all legal requirements for
publication in chapter 50, Florida Statutes.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 10th day of
October in the year of 2024

Notary Public in and for the state of Texas, residing in
Dallas County

Extra charge for lost or duplicate affidavits.
Legal document please do not destroy!

Page 1



 
 

FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

MARCH 17, 2025 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Armando Silva called the March 18, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the 
Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:42 p.m. in the Las 
Sevillas Roundabout located at 10012 NW 7th Street, Miami, Florida 33172. 
 
B.  SEAT NEWLY ELECTED BOARD MEMBERS (SEATS 1,2, &5) 
 
The elected Board members were seated to Seat #1 (Mayra de Torres), Seat #2 (Arno Lemus), and 
Seat #5 (Eddy Luna).  
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Silva presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Miami Herald on October 10, 2024, as legally required. 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Mr. Silva determined that the attendance of Chairperson Mayra De Torres, Vice Chairperson 
Humberto Jovanovic and Supervisors Miguel Garcia, Eddy Luna, and Arno Lemus (via 
speakerphone) constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting. 
 
Staff in attendance were: District Manager Armando Silva and Associate District Manager Pablo 
Jerez of Special District Services, Inc.; and General Counsel Scott Cochran of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, 
Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
Others in attendance were: Edward Aparacio, Miami, FL; Oscar Galvez, Miami, FL; Edith Rodriguez, 
Miami, FL; Daniela Montero, Miami, FL. 
 
E.   CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01 – ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) ELECTING THE OFFICERS OF THE 
DISTRICT AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
As a result of the changes to the Board of the District, Mr. Silva recommended that re-election of the 
District’s Officers take place. He provided the following slate of names for election: 
 

 Chairperson – Mayra De Torres 
 Vice Chairperson – Humberto Jovanovic 
 Secretary/Treasurer – Armando Silva 
 Assistant Secretaries – Eddy Luna, Arno Lemus, Miguel Garcia, Nancy Nguyen, and 

Gloria Perez 

Page 2



 
A motion was made by Mr. Garcia, seconded by Ms. De Torres and passed unanimously to elect the 
District’s Officers, as listed above. 
 
F. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
No additions or deletions at this time. 

 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public at this time. 
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.   November 18, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 
 

Mr. Silva presented the minutes of the November 18, 2024, Regular Board Meeting. A motion was 
made by Mr. Garcia, seconded by Ms. De Torres and passed unanimously approving the minutes of 
the November 18, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, as presented.  
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 1. Update Regarding Perimeter Fence (Las Ramblas) 
 
Mr. Silva provided an update on the ongoing perimeter fence project for the Las Ramblas community. 
The District permit was rejected by the Miami-Dade County Zoning Department. District Counsel 
has prepared a letter to submit to Miami-Dade County which will address the comments that were 
brought up by Miami-Dade County. These comments mimic the same comments that were brought 
up by Keep the Bleau Green and were originally not mentioned by Miami-Dade County as part of the 
initial permit process. Furthermore, a discussion ensued on the proper way to proceed with the 
building permit rejection and the consensus was to have District Management reach out to the Miami-
Dade County Zoning Attorney (now in charge of reviewing the permit) to schedule a meeting to 
discuss the District’s stance on pertaining to the perimeter fence project.  
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2025-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Annual 
Budget 

 
Mr. Silva presented Resolution No. 2025-02, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Silva presented the resolution and provided a brief explanation for the resolution. Mr. Silva 
advised that since the overall proposed assessments were not increasing (decreasing for the residents) 
in the fiscal year 2025/2026, letters to the property owners would not be required.  Mr. Silva also 
stated that as part of Resolution No. 2025-02, the Board must set a date for the public hearing to adopt 
the 2025/2026 final fiscal year budget and assessments.  A discussion ensued after which: 

Page 3



 
A motion was made by Ms. De Torres, seconded by Mr. Garcia and unanimously passed approving 
and adopting Resolution No. 2025-02 thus setting the public hearing to adopt the 2025/2026 Fiscal 
Year budget and assessments for June 16, 2025, at 6:30 p.m. in the Las Ramblas Clubhouse 
Conference Room located at 9960 NW 10th Terrace, Miami, Florida 33172. 
 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2025-03 – Designating a Registered Agent 
 
Mr. Silva presented Resolution No. 2025-03, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-03 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING MICHAEL J. PAWELCZYK 
AS THE DISTRICT’S REGISTERED AGENT AND DESIGNATING THE 
OFFICE OF BILLING, COCHRAN, LYLES, MAURO & RAMSEY, P.A. AS 
THE REGISTERED OFFICE 

 
Mr. Silva explained that Florida Statutes requires that the District designate a registered office and 
registered agent for the purpose of accepting service of process, notice, or demand that is required by 
law to be served upon the District. He further explained that it is necessary to designate a new 
registered agent and update the business address of the registered office. A discussion ensued, after 
which:  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Garcia, seconded by Ms. De Torres and unanimously passed designating 
Michael J. Pawelczyk as the Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development District registered agent, 
and designating the registered office at Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A., 515 East Las 
Olas Boulevard, Suite 600, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301.    
 

3. Discussion Regarding Cameras Maintenance Plans (Las Ramblas) 
 
Mr. Silva presented a proposal from War Entertainment Inc. pertaining to the maintenance of the 
District surveillance cameras located within the Las Ramblas community. Mr. Silva also discussed 
the possibility of a down detector for the cameras. The Board tabled the approval and requested 
additional maintenance proposals be submitted  
 

4. Discussion Regarding Entrance Gate Improvements (Las Sevillas) 
 

Mr. Garcia stated that the gate system located within Las Sevillas is in need of repair and more often 
lately that the system has aged. The Las Sevillas Homeowner’s Association received a proposal from 
Fantasy Gates and wanted to discuss whether or not it constituted a capital improvement and setting 
a precedent for future use of what defines a capital improvement. A discussion ensued among the 
Board and ultimately was decided to not use the capital fund to pay for the repairs and consider it a 
District Maintenance expenditure. Another discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Garcia, seconded by Ms. De Torres and unanimously passed approving 
the proposal from Fantasy Gates for an amount not to exceed $20,000 for the replacements of the two 
swing gate motors located in Las Sevillas.  
  

Page 4



5. Consider Approval of DeAngelo Contracting Services (Aquagenix) Request for 
Assignment of their Agreement to TIGRIS Aquatic Services 

 
Mr. Silva presented a letter from DeAngelo Contracting Services stating their intention to enter into 
an acquisition agreement with TIGRIS Aquatic Services, LLC. A discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Jovanovic, seconded by Mr. Garcia and unanimously passed accepting 
the transfer of the District Aquatic Maintenance contract to be transferred into the name of TIGRIS 
Aquatic Services LLC. 
 

6. Consider Ratification of the Professional Engineering Services Agreement with 
Robayna and Associates, Inc.  

 
Mr. Silva presented the Professional Engineering Services Agreement between the District and 
Robayna and Associates, Inc. and stated that the Agreement has already been executed.  A discussion 
ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Ms. De Torres seconded by Mr. Garcia and unanimously passed ratifying the 
Professional Engineering Services Agreement between the District and  Robayna and Associates, Inc.  
 

7. Consider Ratification of the First Amendment to the Lawn and Landscaping 
Maintenance Service Agreement. 

 
Mr. Silva presented an Amendment to the Lawn and Landscaping Maintenance Agreement between 
the District and FRD Complete Tree Service & Lawn Care, Inc., increasing the yearly contracted 
services amount from $87,374.00 to $99,477. A discussion ensued after which;  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Jovanovic, seconded by Ms. De Torres and unanimously passed accepting 
the Amendment to the Lawn and Landscaping Agreement between the District and FRD Complete 
Tree Service & Lawn Care, Inc.  
 
K. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 

1. Discussion Regarding Memorandum Regarding the Legal Requirements for Miami-
Dade County CDDs Owning/Maintaining Stormwater Management Systems 
 

District Counsel submitted a memorandum advising the District of the legal requirements with 
owning and maintaining stormwater management systems within Miami-Dade County.  Certain 
permitting requirements are now necessary as well as Operation & Maintenance manuals that are now 
required to submit to Miami-Dade County.  
 
  
L. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member or Staff closing comments.  
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. De Torres, 
seconded by Mr. Garcia and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 8:03 p.m. 

Page 5



 
 
 ________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary                          Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 6



Overall of Fence
Project

2025-04-02

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Attention: Armando Silva Project: Security System

Title: Special District Services Project: CCTV

Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development District P.O. Number:

Address: Invoice Number: W250133

Term: 30 days

Date: Feb 5, 2025 11:00 PM <-------------- Pending

MAINTENANCE PLAN PROPOSAL
******* DESCRIPTION******** QUANTITY UNIT PRICE            COST

Remote Monitoring 24/7 for malfunction or system offline 0.00

Remote training as request, via zoom, team viewer, Anydesk or conference call 0.00

help to research evidence in criminal or delinquency cases  0.00

Maintenance Cameras System (clean lens and contacts) every 4 months 0.00

Included Club House system 0.00

Included Play Ground “ROUND” 0.00

Included Play Ground “MONKEY BAR” 0.00

Included Guard House (tenis, mail box, black water pump station, under bridge and fountain blue exit 0.00

0.00

0.00

Labor Company rate 85 x H (min 3 hour) $ 255.00 6 85.00 510.00

Subtotal $510.00

ADJUSTMENT EXEMPTION TAX FOR CDD 0.00% $0.00

 Monthly Charge  $ 510.00  total at year $ 6,120.00 TOTAL $510.00

Repair and New equipment are not included. 

  

*** DEPOSIT MUST BE 50 % OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT *** THE OTHER 50% WILL BE DUE WHEN JOB IS DONE.

NOTE: Contractor agrees to perform the work and use the materials in accordance with the descriptions within this contract. Any alteration(s) from the above specifications and/or 
materials will be executed only upon written change and will be added to contract; total charges will be the revised total of the contract, for Internet or Smart Phone Monitoring. 
One Years Warranty, ONLY covers equipments malfunction from factory Damage under fire, heavy impact, vandalism or extreme weather conditions avoid warranty

                         __________________________________________                             __________________________________________________

                                         Alex Reutlinger                                                                                               Armando Silva                                           

                              

   Alex Reutlinger  

         Cell (305) 450 8818

                     13448 sw 49 ave

                    Ocala Fl 34473

  e-mail: war_entertainment@yahoo.com

Page 11



Attention: Armando Silva Project: Security System

Title: Special District Services Project: CCTV

Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development District P.O. Number:

Address: Invoice Number: W250133

Term: 30 days

Date: Feb 5, 2025 11:00 PM <-------------- Pending

MAINTENANCE PLAN PROPOSAL
******* DESCRIPTION******** QUANTITY UNIT PRICE            COST

Remote Monitoring 24/7 for malfunction or system offline 0.00

Remote training as request, via zoom, team viewer, Anydesk or conference call 0.00

help to research evidence in criminal or delinquency cases  0.00

Maintenance Cameras System (clean lens and contacts) every 4 months 0.00

Included Club House system 0.00

Included Play Ground “ROUND” 0.00

Included Play Ground “MONKEY BAR” 0.00

Included Guard House (tenis, mail box, black water pump station, under bridge and fountain blue exit 0.00

0.00

0.00

Labor Company rate 85 x H (min 3 hour) $ 255.00 6 85.00 510.00

Subtotal $510.00

ADJUSTMENT EXEMPTION TAX FOR CDD 0.00% $0.00

 Monthly Charge  $ 510.00  total at year $ 6,120.00 TOTAL $510.00

Repair and New equipment are not included. 

  

*** DEPOSIT MUST BE 50 % OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT *** THE OTHER 50% WILL BE DUE WHEN JOB IS DONE.

NOTE: Contractor agrees to perform the work and use the materials in accordance with the descriptions within this contract. Any alteration(s) from the above specifications and/or 
materials will be executed only upon written change and will be added to contract; total charges will be the revised total of the contract, for Internet or Smart Phone Monitoring. 
One Years Warranty, ONLY covers equipments malfunction from factory Damage under fire, heavy impact, vandalism or extreme weather conditions avoid warranty

                         __________________________________________                             __________________________________________________

                                         Alex Reutlinger                                                                                               Armando Silva                                           

                              

   Alex Reutlinger  

         Cell (305) 450 8818

                     13448 sw 49 ave

                    Ocala Fl 34473

  e-mail: war_entertainment@yahoo.com

Page 12


	Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development District - April 21, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 17, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Update Regarding Perimeter Fence (Las Ramblas)
	Discussion Regarding Maintenance of CDD Surveillance Cameras




